
 
AGENDA 
 
 
ALLIANCE  
FOR  
INVESTMENT 
 
 
 
Board Members: 
 
James Botts • Meagan Carr • Rick DeVries • Santiago Gomez • Kristian Grant • Tansy Harris • Dave Hill • Rachel Hood         
Landon Jones • Ryan Kilpatrick • Nick Koster • Ning Liu • Ted Lott • Mark Miller • Nick Monoyios • Traci Montgomery • Kirt Ojala                      
Kevin Patterson • Sarah Rainero • Dave Riley • Mark Roys • Art Sebastian • Phil Skaggs • Lori Staggs • Jay Steffen • Tom Tilma 
Roberto Torres • Brianna Vasquez de Pereira • Rick Winn • Kara Wood  
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

October 10, 2016 
3:30p – 5:00p 
29 Pearl Street, NW Suite #1 

  
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Approval of September Minutes      Motion                         Monoyios 

(enclosure) 
 

3. Incentive Program and Evaluation Discussion  Info Item                       Full Alliance 
(enclosure) 

 
4. Alliance for Livability Project Update   Info Item           Kirk 

• DASH and Silverline  
• Accessibility Audit 
• Bikeshare Feasibility RFP 
 

5. Streetcar Discussion      Info Item                       Monoyios 
 

6. Open Alliance Discussion        Info Item           Full Alliance 
 

7. Public Comment 
 

8. Adjournment  
 

 



Alliance for Investment                         UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
Minutes-September 13, 2016 
 

  
Alliance for Investment  

September 13th, 2016 
 

1. Call to order:  Monoyios called the meeting to order at 3:33pm 
 

2. Members Present:  James Botts, Meagan Carr, Rick DeVries, Santiago Gomez, Dave Hill, Mark 
Miller, Nick Monoyios, Kirt Ojala, Lori Staggs, Jay Steffen, Tom Tilma, Roberto Torres, Kara Wood 
 
Members Absent:  Kristian Grant, Tansy Harris, Rachel Hood, Landon Jones, Ryan Kilpatrick, Nick 
Koster, Ning Liu, Ted Lott, Traci Montgomery, Kevin Patterson, Sarah Rainero, Dave Riley, Mark 
Roys, Art Sebastian, Phil Skaggs, Brianna Vasquez de Pereira, Rick Winn 
 
Others Present:   Tim Kelly, Jennie Kovalcik, Ben Rambadt 
 

3. Approval of August Meeting Minutes:  
Motion: Moved to approve August 9th, 2016 minutes as presented.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 
4. Incentive Program & Evaluation Discussion:   

Kelly said revisions were made to the incentive programming after last month’s discussions and review.  
Kelly highlighted some major changes to the draft.  Kelly said the program previously looked at a 
funding amount of $50,000; now the program will be tied to the overall project cost to allow more 
funds to be contributed to each project.  Kelly said another revision included evaluating projects based 
on which goals are met, and creating a way to vet which projects to take based on their overall capacity 
to meet GR Forward incentives and goals.  Kelly added the need to have a discussion on how to 
evaluate each project.  Kelly said other changes were administrative.  Kelly said the revisions are open 
for questions and comments.  Hill asked if there is a mechanism to ensure goals and objectives are 
completed within the scope of the project; is the money granted through this program going to be 
used strictly for GR Forward strategies and not in other places.  Kelly said the program is all based on a 
reimbursement system, meaning the project has to be competed and designated an eligible project 
before receiving funds.  Monoyios asked if developers have to demonstrate line items designated to 
reaching certain goals in order to be eligible.  Kelly responded yes, most projects seek funding before 



Alliance for Investment                         UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
Minutes-September 13, 2016 
 

the end of construction.  DeVries asked why higher learning facilities are not eligible.  Kelly said that is 
a rule set in place by the DDA Board; however, they can always waive this rule if they choose.  Wood 
asked for clarification on requirements and eligibility regarding number 4 (four) (building or project 
shall not have received previous funding from DDA).  Kelly said this section will be changed, as funds 
are tied to the project and not the building.  Kelly added the approval process will also change to a 
standing monthly review system.  Gomez asked if there is a specific maximum dollar amount available.  
Kelly said as it is written, there is not.  Kelly added development and support considerations for eligible 
projects will not surpass or become giant sums of money.  Monoyios said based on multiple 
conversations, the $50,000 ceiling was eliminated because projects that exceed this amount could 
benefit greatly.  Tilma asked if private projects are eligible as well.  Kelly said yes, public and private 
projects are both eligible.  Tilma asked why public project incentives that are covered in this 
programming are not in the overall DDA budget.  Kelly said there are some public projects that the 
City of Grand Rapids or DDA might not be aware of, like Grand Rapids Public Schools, but may still 
want to fund; therefore, funds cannot always be budgeted ahead of time.  Tilma asked why funds are 
available to developers for these projects, instead of developers helping to subsidize the work of DGRI 
and the DDA.  Kelly responded we are able to participate on improvements that benefit and affect the 
public, which helps the developer but also helps the public.  Kelly continued DDA funds are written to 
benefit the public and generate public value for the community.  Tilma asked if developers still need 
encouragement in this way, or is it independent of the investment program we offer.  Kelly said 
although we recognize there is more development downtown, programming like this leverages DGRI 
and DDA goals.  Tilma said if that is the case, why not add a line item to the DDA budget.  Kelly said 
that is an option, but this is one way to directly reach our goals.  Monoyios said projects that warrant 
incentives should be a moving target, and maybe the need for this programming thins and is not 
needed overtime.  Monoyios said this helps us transition into discussing how to evaluate these projects 
moving forward.  Botts asked if survey weighted voting is an option. Kelly said an example of a system 
DGRI has in place was created by Kim Van Driel, the Special Events Manager.  Kelly continued, Van 
Driel receives special event sponsorship requests and that application is scored based on needs and 
priorities.  Monoyios said once criteria are decided, a survey will be sent out to members to score items 
by importance.  DeVries asked if any items stick out based on previous surveys and comments 
received through past developments.  Kelly said public space and public housing are a few priorities, 
but the challenge is whether or not the needle can moved on those particular projects with this 
program.   Monoyios said public input can be used as criteria to weight items.  Gomez asked, even if 
certain project aspects are weighted more, how will that be advertised to the public; how will the public, 
future owners, or future workers know that these funds are available and valuable.  Kelly responded 
from a marketing side, it is important to stress what we are trying to accomplish.  Kelly said because 
goals are based on GR Forward, the criterion is already captured; however, the group can brainstorm 
priorities.  Tilma asked how the Alliance will decipher which developers need help from us through 
these incentive programs.  Miller responded that there are gaps in the wealth and scope of each 
project, and the incentive program allows us to amplify what is accomplished.  Miller added the first 
items to be removed from a budget for a developer are items like these amenities.  Miller said the 
simplicity of this document encourages our goals while allowing room for latitude.  Miller continued, 
this program allows gaps to be filled where they exist, even as demand changes and downtown evolves.  



Alliance for Investment                         UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
Minutes-September 13, 2016 
 

Monoyios asked the Alliance to consider how cost effectiveness could be demonstrated to the DDA 
Board.  Kelly said we will consider questions posed in this conversation and a survey will be sent out to 
the group before our next meeting.       

 
5. Calder Plaza Concept Review:  

Kelly said the Calder Plaza Steering Committee created stakeholder focus groups and conducted two 
(2) surveys.  Kelly said the survey results indicated an interest in activation, access, design, and 
amenities.  Kelly added the results show the public would like to see more vegetation, circulation, 
economic activity, temporary markets, music, furniture, shade and water; while not obstructing the view 
of the Calder itself.  Kelly continued, the consultant team helped create three (3) designs that were 
presented to the public at last week’s City Commission meeting.  Kelly added that not simply one of 
these concepts will be chosen, but rather parts from each will become the final preferred choice.  Kelly 
presented the Calder Plaza project overview, noting that the concepts are being evaluated until 
October.  Kelly said the more feedback on this project, the better, adding that presentations with 
interested parties are possible.  Kelly said workshops will be conducted at the end of the month, and 
invited anyone interested to join either session.  Torres asked if the new design concepts will negatively 
impact or limit the growth of cultural events, such as the Hispanic Festival.  Kelly responded the event 
capacity is an aspect that will not be lost, noting that the analysis has a capacity count for each design.  
Kelly said following up with individuals or groups who utilize the space for events is important, stating 
access is essential moving forward with any concept.  Torres requested to schedule a meeting with 
Kelly.  Wood asked if the constructability of each concept was evaluated.  Kelly said costs and 
effectiveness will be part of further discussions.  DeVries suggested looking at storm water capture; 
Kelly noted this.  Kelly asked the group if they thought concepts were over-programming the center of 
the plaza instead of focusing on what is happening adjacent to it.  Steffen said adding lighting aspects 
around and within the plaza, especially to the actual Calder art piece, would be a way to tie design 
together.  Steffen also suggested creating shelter from the wind and encouraging winter activities.  
Steffen asked if the connection across Monroe to the convention center allowed access inside or if 
stairs/elevators had to be added.  Kelly said it is possible to connect to the inside of the convention 
center, adding that this could be discussed in future sessions.  Kelly said a twenty (20) minute tape of 
the last City Commission meeting featuring the design concepts is available on DGRI’s media pages.   

 
6. Open Alliance Discussion:   

None 
  

7. Public Comment: 
Ben Rambadt introduced himself to the Alliance as a downtown workforce member and first time 
meeting attendee. 

 
8. Next Meeting: 

October 11, 2016 
 

9. Adjournment: 



Alliance for Investment                         UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
Minutes-September 13, 2016 
 

Monoyios adjourned the meeting at 4:34pm  
 
 

 

Minutes taken by:  
Jennie Kovalcik 
Administrative Assistant 
Downtown Grand Rapids Inc.  

 



DRAFT DOWNTOWN ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM GUIDELINES (10.10.16) 

1 
 

I. Program Purpose  
To provide financial assistance to enhance projects in Downtown Grand Rapids, that further the 
community goals established in GR Forward and the organizational goals of Downtown Grand 
Rapids Inc. (DGRI) 
 

II. Available Funding 
Approved projects are eligible for reimbursement of up to 50 percent of project costs for 
eligible activities as defined by PA 197 of the State of Michigan (attached).  

 
III. Project Evaluation 

Any project located in the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) boundary is eligible for the 
Downtown Incentive Program. Submitted applications will be evaluated to determine their ability 
to advance of the goals of GR Forward, with a specific focus on public realm enhancements. The 
DDA will fund project enhancements beyond what is required by the City of Grand Rapids, 
including but not limited to those elements outlined below.  
 

• Street Trees 
• Street Furniture 
• Pedestrian Lighting 
• Planter Boxes 
• Public Art 
• Outdoor Dining Areas 
• Enhanced Paving 
• Snowmelt 
• Bicycle and Multi-Modal Facilities 
• Façade Lighting and Enhancements 
• Accessibility Enhancements for Persons with of all Abilities 
• Others as Approved by Review Committee 

 
The approval of a particular project will be at the sole discretion of the DDA Board. On an annual 
basis, the DGRI Alliance for Investment will review the Program Guidelines to determine if 
changes are required to meet the ever evolving needs of Downtown. Note, funding can only be 
provided as reimbursement for eligible activities as defined by PA 197.  
 

I. Requirements and Eligibility 
1. Projects must be located in the DDA Boundary (see attached);  
2. Funds may only be used to reimburse eligible activities, as defined by PA 197;  
3. Must not have commenced construction on items to be reimbursed at the time of application;  
4. Project shall not have received previous funding from DDA;  
5. Projects receiving funding from the DDA’s Development Support Program are not eligible;  
6. Non-profits and higher learning institutions are generally not eligible; however, the DDA 

Board may choose to support a project at their sole discretion; 



DRAFT DOWNTOWN ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM GUIDELINES (10.10.16) 

2 
 

7. Applicants must be up to date on City of Grand Rapids taxes prior to receiving 
reimbursement;  

8. Funding shall be allocated on a per project basis.  
 

II. Approval Process 
1. Submit application with fee to Downtown Grand Rapids Inc.  
2. Staff review of application materials  
3. Review of application by the DGRI Alliance for Investment Committee  
4. Presentation to DDA Board – 1st Wednesday of Every Month 
5. Agreement executed (following DDA Board approval) 
6. Reimbursement Issued – Upon project completion  

 

 

 

 

 

 





¼ ½

http://downtowngr.org/our-work/projects/gr-forward
http://www.bikegrandrapids.org/programs-and-projects/bicycle-traffic-count-results/


 

 

 

o 

o 

o 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 ‐

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 ‐

 

 ‐

 

 

 

 ‐

 

 

 

 

 

 

 ‐

‐



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 ‐

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 ‐

‐

 

‐

 



 

 

 

 ‐ ‐

 

 

 

 

‐

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:bkirk@downtowngr.org
http://grcity.us/fiscal-services/Purchasing-Department/Pages/Supplier-Registration-Instructions.aspx
http://grcity.us/fiscal-services/Purchasing-Department/Pages/Supplier-Registration-Instructions.aspx
mailto:bkirk@downtowngr.org


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

‐



X

X

X X

X

OPERATING INFO.


